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Tuesday, April 14, 2015

--- On commencing at 9:31 a.m.

MS. HARE:  Please be seated.  I think we are on air, ready to go.


Good morning, my name is Marika Hare, and with me on the Panel is Board member Allison Duff.


The Board is sitting today in the matter of an application by Essex Powerlines Corporation for an order approving just and reasonable rates and other charges for electricity distribution to be effective May 1st, 2015.


This application was assigned docket no. EB-2014-0072, and was combined with another application by Essex Powerlines for an order approving a smart meter disposition rate rider and a smart meter incremental revenue requirement rate rider.  That application was assigned docket number EB-2014-0301.  The Board combined the hearing of these applications.


The focus of today's hearing is to deal with the matters raised in EB-2014-0072, and the errors discovered during the course of this proceeding.


The errors pertain to the group 1 deferral and variance accounts, and specifically accounts 1588 and 1589. These errors are significant and involve three rate tiers, 2011, 2012 and 2013.


As described in the partial decision and Procedural Order No. 3, the Board has already rejected Essex Powerlines’ proposal to adjust the 2011 and 2012 deferral and variance account balances, which were disposed on a final basis.


The Board has yet to determine the disposition of the 2013 deferral and variance accounts, and yet to be collected residual amount from February 1, 2015, to April 30, 2015, which was affected by the Board's suspension of the rate riders pending this review.


The Board took the unprecedented step of ordering an oral hearing in what otherwise would be a mechanistic adjustment to rates through the incentive rate mechanism process.


Through this hearing, the Board is expecting to develop a clear understanding of the nature of the errors and how, for the 2013 year and the 2012 stub period, Essex proposes to address them.


May I have appearances, please?

Appearances:


MR. VEGH:  Good morning, Madam Chair, Ms. Duff.  George Vegh, counsel for the applicant, Essex Powerlines.


MR. STOLL:  Good morning, Madam Chair.  Scott Stoll, co-counsel for Essex Powerlines.


MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Mark Rubenstein, counsel for the School Energy Coalition.


MR. JANIGAN:  Good morning, Madam Chair.  Michael Janigan for Vulnerable Energy Consumers Coalition.


MR. STOLL:  Madam Chair, to Mr. Vegh's right is Mr. Taylor from Essex.  He will be working the computer for bringing the evidence up on screen.


MS. HARE:  Okay, thank you.


MR. LANNI:  Richard Lanni, Board counsel.


MS. SABHARWAL:  Raj Sabharwal, Board Staff.


MS. VLAHOS:  Georgette Vlahos, Board Staff.

Preliminary Matters:


MS. HARE:  Thank you.  The Board knows of two preliminary matters that it would like to raise at the outset of this hearing.


The first is to declare rates interim as of May 1, 2015.  I am assuming there are no objections to this, but if there are, please let me know.


In that case, the rates are declared interim as of May 1st.


The second matter is the confidentiality of an audit report completed by the Board's audit staff. This report is dated March 28, 2013, and has been made available to those parties who have signed the undertaking, but it is not on the public record.


The applicant has requested that the audit report be held in confidence, pursuant to the Board's direction on confidential filings. If there are any objections to this request, we would like to hear submissions.

Submissions by Mr. Rubenstein:


MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Madam Chair, the School Energy Coalition objects to confidentiality of the audit report.


My friends, in their letter of April 7th, have essentially provided three reasons for confidentiality in their letter, the first being that it does say "confidential" on the document.  And I do recognize that the document which -- beginning at page 1 does have the watermark "confidential" on it and it says "confidential" on the bottom.


But I think the Board has always looked past the labels of the doc -- of saying -- if the word "confidentiality" is on the document, to look at what the document actually is and if it should be confidential. Utilities, or even Board Staff, can't simply put the word "confidential" on it.


I think the overarching principle before the Board is that confidentiality is the exception, and the Board's records should be open to inspection, and the onus is on the applicant.  


So just because it says confidential, I think is not a proper reason.


The second ground that my friends provide is that Appendix D of the practice direction contemplates that certain documents should be held in confidence, and what I believe my friends are saying is that the audit contains certain information that would be found -- which the underlying information would be in the Boards RRR reports, and that that information is one of the listed grounds in Appendix A.


Well, it's not clear to me exactly why in the practice direction RRR filings are necessarily something that should be provided confidentiality.  I notice, and I think this is important, that in the application itself, and in all applications before the Board, certain information that underlie in the application are information that's with respect to -- that are in the RRR filings.


So in the rate models that my friends have filed and the amounts in the accounts are stuff that are normally provided in RRR filings, and obviously that information is made public before the Board.


I don't -- Essex has not provided any rationale for why the specific information that would be in the audits that would be RRR information would necessarily be confidential.


And then the last reason is that Essex argues that there would be potential harmful effects if there is disclosure, as it would impair communications between regulated entities and the Board's audit reports.  I note that Essex has provided no justification or explanation of that statement; that is simply just an assertion on their part.


You know, fundamentally, these are regulated monopolies, who the Board has the authority to audit and to ensure are in compliance with the Board rules and in the rate-setting process, and it would seem contradictory that the results of those audits, which that those numbers form the parts of rates that are or could be set at a future date, would not be made public.


And lastly, I think as Ms. Hare stated, this is an extraordinary situation that we are in.  So it would seem to me that if any time that an audit report would be placed on the public record it would be in a case like this where the Board is making a decision with respect to accounting issues.  And I think that is important.


Now, I have tried to find past precedent on this issue.  The only time that I can find that audit reports have been placed on the public record is when there was a specific Board order for them to do that in a previous case that results of an audit -- but on the other hand, there has never been, in my -- that I have been able to find, a request for an audit report that the issue of confidentiality has come up.


So this is somewhat of a novel situation, and we would say generally and based on the specifics of this case that the audit report should be placed on the public record.


MS. HARE:  Mr. Rubenstein, I want to ask you a question because it was School's interrogatory that resulted in the audit report being filed in confidentiality.


But once you see the audit report, it deals with group 2 accounts.  And the issue today is group 1 accounts.  So is that audit report relevant to your proposed cross-examination today?


MR. RUBINSTEIN:  I was not planning to refer to the report in my cross-examination for some of the reasons that you state.  But the question is not -- I would say it is not necessarily if I or the parties necessarily in this room need to see the report.


I would say it's generally relevant to the issues because it talks about accounting issues, and while they are in different accounts and different accounts that we are talking about, generally the issue is of accounting practices, and while I may not utilize the report for the purposes of cross-examination, the public and the ratepayers of Essex should have -- should be able to review the report -- I would say it is generally relevant -- and draw its conclusions.


MS. HARE:  Thank you.  Mr. Janigan, do you have submissions on this matter?


MR. JANIGAN:  I do not, Madam Chair.


MS. HARE:  Mr. Lanni?

Submissions by Mr. Lanni:


MR. LANNI:  Madam Chair, I would agree with my friend that we are -- this is a novel situation.  Two recent proceedings where an audit report has been placed on the public record, in Lakefront's 2014 rate case and in ELK Energy Inc.'s 2013-0123 proceeding, the audit reports were placed on the public record, but they were done so with the consent of the applicant, so there wasn't an issue as to the confidentiality there.


I wonder if I could take this moment to ask the applicant in this case if it maintains its position for confidentiality over the entire report before Staff's position -- you know, we may have a question or two on it, and it might touch upon something mentioned just in the executive summary, and I would just ask if the applicant would consider discussion with regard to the executive summary on the record and maintaining the rest of the document confidential.  And maybe you need to confer. 


MS. HARE:  I think just in terms of fairness, either Mr. Vegh or Mr. Stoll would have a chance to reply, but, Mr. Lanni, is that the essence of your submissions, then? 


MR. LANNI:  Yes, it is.


MS. HARE:  All right.


MR. STOLL:  It's the client's confidentiality to request, so I'd need a moment to speak with them before I could address that question directly.


MS. HARE:  That's fine.  That's fine.


MR. STOLL:  Okay.


MS. HARE:  Should we take a five-minute break?


MS. DUFF:  I guess I just have a question, to be clear, Mr. Lanni.  Are you talking about the executive summary?  There is also a finding summary, an observation summary.  Could you just clarify what your request is?


MR. LANNI:  Well, the further you get into the document, the more specific the nature of the findings of the report are.  Given that the report focuses on certain group 2 accounts and we are dealing with group 1 accounts in this proceeding, my questions would be of a high level, and I would only need to refer to summary information.


MS. DUFF:  Thank you.


MS. HARE:  Mr. Vegh? 


MR. VEGH:  Just a couple points.


MS. HARE:  Do you want a few minutes, though, to discuss with your clients?


MR. STOLL:  Why don't we speak with my friends and then my client afterwards?


MS. HARE:  Fine.


MR. STOLL:  Okay.


MS. HARE:  So we will take -- what do you think?  Five, ten minutes?  Ten minutes.  We will come back at ten o'clock.  Thank you. 

--- Recess taken at 9:45 a.m.
--- On resuming at 9:54 a.m.


MS. HARE:  Please be seated.  Mr. Stoll or Mr. Vegh, ready to proceed?
Submissions by Mr. Stoll:


MR. STOLL:  It's going to be me that speaks to this issue.  We had the discussion with our client, and I guess we considered Staff's request and we are not agreeable to that.

We are continuing our request for confidentiality.  But if the Board determines that confidentiality is not appropriate, we have a significant concern with just taking a snippet out of a rather lengthy document and saying that paints complete picture of the evidence.

So our position would be, in that regard, it's kind of an all or nothing situation with respect to this document.  So it's either all in, or it's nothing. Our preference is it's nothing.

And if Madam Chair wants, I can respond to some of the things I heard earlier from my friends regarding that issue.

MS. HARE:  Yes, please proceed.

MR. STOLL:  Okay.  There's a few points I would like to make.

One, my friend was right that the Board doesn't just accept "confidential" being stamped on a document rendering it confidential and away from public scrutiny.  However, what my friend didn't address was the stamp "confidential" goes to the expectations of the author and the receiver of the document, and how the document would be treated.  He did nothing to basically address that issue.

The expectation here, because Board Staff is -- would be acting pursuant to Board policy, is that this type of communication should be maintained in confidence.

So that's the first premise of the confidentiality that we would rely on, that the parties' expectations are clear in this case.  Board Staff marked it confidential, our client has requested confidentiality, and the issuance of the report is pursuant to Board policy.

And this gets into another area.  Both submissions indicated this was a novel issue.  And as, Madam Chair, you pointed out, there is a real relevance question towards this report, and I am not sure that we want -- or the Board wants to make a significant policy discussion on a novel issue regarding confidentiality on a very brief submission of a document that may be of very little relevance to the issues in this hearing.

So I would caution the Board in going too far down the road of saying -- of looking at this document and saying, and the precedential value of the decision that may come later.

The other thing I heard my friend say dealt with the aspect of the potential impact.  And there are two points; one the Board policy, but the second is I think the audit procedure isn't just a one-way street.  Often audits contain differences of opinions.  There may be -- like, there are numerous examples in Board proceedings where the interpretation of accounting principles and the auditor's findings are subject to debate, and that's fine.

But to just accept that the one communication is the complete story has the potential of opening up an area of questioning where I don't think it's appropriate to go in looking at further communications between people conducting audits and the subject of the audit.

The other -- so, those are my submissions on confidentiality, and I would request that the Board maintain the entire document in confidence.

I think Mr. Rubenstein has indicated he is not asking any questions on the document, and Mr. Lanni has indicated that his questions are of a high-level nature.  I think we could have certain questions on the document without it being on the public record, and without a need to go in camera or any interruption to the hearing.

So those are my submissions.

MS. HARE:  Thank you.  I just want to ask, Mr. Rubenstein, you will not have questions on the audit report?

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  No.

MS. HARE:  Mr. Janigan, did you have any questions on the audit report?

MR. JANIGAN:  I do not have any questions on the audit report, Madam Chair.

I have filled in a confidentiality undertaking, just in case the thing is discussed in the context of the hearing.

MS. HARE:  Thank you.  And Mr. Lanni?

MR. LANNI:  I may have a question or two.  I can certainly phrase it at a high-level nature, which -- I am making a presumption now -- will not offend the applicant's request for confidentiality.

Maybe at that time we can go in camera, I can ask the question, and if it's fine with the applicant and counsel to ask the question on the public record, I will do so.

MS. HARE:  Okay, thank you.

MR. LANNI:  But as to Board Staff position on the confidentiality of the document, there are provisions in part 7 of the Ontario Energy Board Act that provide for inspectors to bring forth documents such as the audit report into a proceeding.

As far as I am aware, there hasn't been any communication by the authors of the report giving an indication that it would introduce this evidence in this proceeding.  And given the relevance, which is one of the factors that the Board considers when looking at part 7, given the, I guess, limited relevance of the audit report, if Board Staff is satisfied to have the document remain in confidence for the purposes of this proceeding.

MS. HARE:  Okay, thank you.  Sorry to take a break again so soon, but we feel we need to rule on this to know whether we have to proceed in camera or not.

So we are going to take five to ten minutes, and we will let you know, thank you.
--- Recess taken at 10:02 a.m.
--- On resuming at 10:19 a.m.


MS. HARE:  Please be seated.  The Board finds that the specifics of the audit report are of limited value in this proceeding.  However, the fact that an audit by Board Staff was undertaken and its conclusions are relevant and underpins a series of questions by parties.

The details of audit reports by their very nature may be confidential.  In this case, third parties not involved in this proceeding are mentioned by name in the report.  The Board finds that the details of the report are both confidential and not relevant.

The Board considers that this proceeding would benefit from having the covering letter and the executive summary, which is page 1 only, filed in this proceeding as a public document.  The remainder is not evidence in this proceeding and will be removed from the record completely.

Are there any questions?

MR. STOLL:  No questions.

MS. HARE:  Okay.  Thank you.  Now, are there any other preliminary matters?  Yes, Mr. Vegh.

MR. VEGH:  Just one for the applicant, and it's not a matter of submissions, but just a clarification of the applicant's position to avoid any misinterpretation of Procedural Order No. 4.

MS. HARE:  Yes.

MR. VEGH:  If I could have a minute to address that.

MS. HARE:  Sure.

MR. VEGH:  Thank you.
Submissions by Mr. Vegh:


As I said, the concern is to avoid an unintended interpretation potentially of the decision in Procedural Order No. 4 and, in particular, a statement at page 2, and it is just one sentence, so perhaps I would read it to you.

The sentence states that:
"While Essex Powerlines had initially requested a stay of part of Procedural Order No. 3, requiring the utility to respond to questions, et cetera, Essex Powerlines filed complete responses to all of the information requests."


And so, as this procedural order notes, Essex Powerlines did request a stay of the requirement to respond to interrogatories by April 7th.  But there was no response from the Board, so no order of a stay to provide those responses.  And as the Board is aware, in the absence of a stay, a party must comply with the requirements of a Board order, including a procedural order.  So Essex Powerlines followed the law, followed the Board's requirement and, by doing that, did not abandon or prejudice any component of the motion that it filed for a review.

And I just wanted to put that position on the record, and I thank you for the opportunity to provide this clarification.

MS. HARE:  Okay.  Thank you.  I think we are ready then, Mr. Stoll and Mr. Vegh, to introduce your panel.

MR. STOLL:  Okay.  Thank you, Madam Chair.

And I have -- just by way of background, we filed CVs for each of the witness on April 7th.

MS. HARE:  Yes.

MR. STOLL:  So I assume the Board has those.  I have Mr. Ray, Mr. Barile, and Mr. Dimmel, if they could be sworn.
ESSEX POWERLINES LTD. - PANEL 1


Stephen Ray, Sworn


Joe Barile, Sworn


Richard Dimmel, Sworn

Examination-In-Chief by Mr. Stoll:


MR. STOLL:  Thank you.  Just a very brief introduction and then one or two question, Madam Chair.

I will start with you, Mr. Ray.  Can you provide your name, your position and your role in the evidence?

MR. RAY:  Yes.  My name is Steve Ray.  I am the general manager for Essex Energy Corporation.  My role within the organization -- or our role as it pertains to Essex Powerlines, we provide settlement services and engineering services and conservation and demand management services to Essex Powerlines.

MR. STOLL:  And your role in the preparation of the evidence?

MR. RAY:  Pardon me.  My role in the preparation:  I provided input for the revising of the DVA continuity schedule and answers to the interrogatory questions.

MR. STOLL:  Okay.  Thanks.  And have you previously testified at the Ontario Energy Board?

MR. RAY:  Yes, I have.

MR. STOLL:  Okay.  And do you adopt the written evidence for the purpose of your testimony here today?

MR. RAY:  Yes, I do.

MR. STOLL:  Okay.  And do you have any changes or additions to that evidence at this time?

MR. RAY:  No.

MR. STOLL:  Okay.  Now I will go to Mr. Barile.

Can you provide your name, your position, and your role in the preparation of the evidence?

MR. BARILE:  My legal name is Giuseppe Barile.  I'm commonly referred to as Joe.  I'm the general manager of Essex Powerlines.  By virtue of that role, I oversee the operations, the customer service, the engineering, and metering departments, amongst other things.  My role with respect to this proceeding was with regards to the response -- the responses to the interrogatories.  I assisted with those responses, more specifically with regards to the VECC and SEC supplemental questions.

MR. STOLL:  Okay.  And have you previously testified at the Ontario Energy Board?

MR. BARILE:  I have not.

MR. STOLL:  Okay.  And for the purposes of your testimony here, do you adopt the written record?

MR. BARILE:  I do.

MR. STOLL:  Okay.  And do you have any changes or additions that you would like the make at this time?

MR. BARILE:  No.

MR. STOLL:  Okay.  And the same set of questions for you, Mr. Dimmel:  Can you provide your name, your position, and your role in the evidence?

MR. DIMMEL:  My name is Richard Dimmel.  I'm vice-president of regulatory affairs for Essex Powerlines Corporation.  I was responsible for the IRM and smart meter filing information, and I provided support in responding to the interrogatories subsequent to that filing.

MR. STOLL:  Okay.  And have you previously testified at the Ontario Energy Board?

MR. DIMMEL:  I have not.

MR. STOLL:  Okay.  And for the purposes of your testimony today, do you adopt the written evidence?

MR. DIMMEL:  I do.

MR. STOLL:  Okay.  And do you have any changes or additions that you would like to make?

MR. DIMMEL:  No, I do not.

MR. STOLL:  Okay.

Madam Chair, I just have two questions that I would like to ask.

MS. HARE:  Can I just interrupt?  So Mr. Barile and Mr. Ray, you are both general managers, but one, I assume, is the holding company.  So am I correct that, Mr. Ray, you are the general manager of the holding company?  How does that work?

MR. RAY:  The way it works is I'm actually the general manager of Essex Energy Corporation, which is wholly owned by Essex Power Corporation, which is hold co, and Essex Powerlines also is owned by the holdco, Essex Power Corporation.  So, in a sense, it's the unregulated affiliate of Essex Powerlines Corporation, that is, Essex Energy, and I am the general manager of that company.

MS. HARE:  Okay.  Thank you.

And, Mr. Barile, then you are the general manager of the distribution company?

MR. BARILE:  That's correct.

MS. HARE:  Okay.  Thank you.

MR. STOLL:  Mr. Dimmel, can you provide a very high-level explanation of what caused the issue with accounts 1588 and 1589?

MR. DIMMEL:  Yes.  I thought it would be helpful for the Board if I went over the response to School Energy Coalition's IR No. 2, and that response covered three forms that we submitted, which are in page 21 of the information the Board Staff provided.  It's the first form, this form here.  It says "Form No. 1" on page 21, up in the right-hand corner.

This is the form that we used prior to the error occurring.  This is the form that we have used for quite a few years before time-of-use pricing came in.

In the bottom left-hand corner, is there was an embedded percentage in there that calculated the RPP portion of the -- of the customer consumption that we had.

So this form was the first form that we used.  On page 22 is, when time-of-use pricing came in, we had a new form, and this is the new form that was provided.  It's designated by the number two up in the right-hand corner.  This came into effect, like I said, when the time-of-use pricing came in.


It also has -- we had a cell down here in the bottom left-hand corner that we calculated a percent.  That percentage was incorrect, but we used that percentage going forward.

So there was a number of things going on at that the time.  We had time-of-use pricing coming in, we had embedded generation coming through on Hydro One invoices that were changing, we had the global adjustment that was increasing and fluctuating and, you know, there was several -- those three things were kind of masking what, you know, should have happened with this percentage.

And so that was, like, the second form.


The third form we provided on page 23 and designated by the number 3 in the upper right-hand corner is the form we are using today and we corrected.  And it has a percentage at the bottom left-hand side, which is percent of the RPP portion.  We further enhanced this form now to have an -- to have both RPP and non-RPP on this form, so we know it totals 100 percent every time.

So there were a number of things going on when this form came out, where the error occurred.  There was a time-of-use pricing, there was the embedded generation coming through on invoices.  So there was a number of -- and the global adjustment changing, and increasing and fluctuating. So there was a number of things that kind of masked the error at the time that we didn't clue in on, that we didn't understand.  That is a high-level of how the error occurred.

MR. STOLL:  And the consequence of the error in that cell was what?

MR. DIMMEL:  Because the percentage was lower on that second form that we allocated less cost to non-RPP customers, and so that resulted in an increasing credit balance for the overall in the 1589 account.

MR. STOLL:  Okay.  Those are my questions for examination in-chief, and I turn them over for cross-examination.

MS. HARE:  Thank you.  So I think Board Staff is going to go first, is that correct?

MR. LANNI:  Thank you, Madam chair. 
Cross-Examination by Mr. Lanni:


MR. LANNI:  So I guess my first question is:  Were the forms -- were they totalling 100 percent, even prior to the adjustments that the utility made after discovering the error?

MR. DIMMEL:  I don't understand what you mean by 100 percent.

MR. LANNI:  I guess the forms were -- the forms were working?


MR. DIMMEL:  Yes.

MR. LANNI:  Prior to 2011, has the utility undertaken any check as to whether the splits were accurate for those periods?

MR. DIMMEL:  I believe we had the -- the split started in 2011, so I believe the form had an embedded formula in it, so we were confident that it was okay.

MR. LANNI:  All right.  Can you explain how you arrive at the RPP/non-RPP split?

MR. DIMMEL:  What happens is there's other tabs in this file that we have, and it pulls information from our billing system.  So it pulls the RPP and non-RPP customer information, and would pull that into this form.

MR. LANNI:  Now in terms of settling with the IESO, can you describe the process in any particular detail?

MR. DIMMEL:  This form is used to gather the information for the 1598 submission to the IESO, and then this information is taken and input into the IESO's website or import facility.

MR. LANNI:  And on the IESO's website, there are three rates available for and LDC to the to use with respect to global adjustment; preliminary, mid-month, and actual.  Can you advise which rate you use, and why that particular one?

MR. DIMMEL:  I cannot answer that myself, no.  Can I confer with my colleagues?

MS. HARE:  Yes, please.

MR. DIMMEL:  We use mid-month.

MR. LANNI:  Okay.  And can you explain why at this moment?  Maybe you can take an undertaking, just a general -- just by way of a general understanding as to why the preference?

MR. BARILE:  Just for clarity, the undertaking is to determine why, if we use mid-month, why we use mid-month.  Okay, thank you.

MS. HARE:  Actually, preferable would be if maybe over the break, you could confer and come up with an answer.

MR. BARILE:  We will attempt to do that and, if we can't, we will certainly undertake to provide you with a response.

MS. DUFF:  It is in particular comparing it to the other options available; thank you.

MR. LANNI:  Okay, so we won't mark that as an undertaking just yet.

Can you also advise how you account for embedded generation when settling the global adjustment with the IESO?

MR. DIMMEL:  Can I confer with my colleagues?

MS. HARE:  Yes.

MR. BARILE:  If I may?  Since my colleague is uncertain, we will do the same thing.  We will confer at the break and, if we can provide a response, we will on the record.  If not, we will certainly provide an undertaking.

MR. LANNI:  Fair enough.

MR. BARILE:  I don't intend to do that to every question you have.

MR. LANNI:  That's okay.  Thank you.  If I can take you to Board Staff's compendium -- and if we can mark that as an exhibit, please?  That will be Exhibit K1.1.  The exhibit is, yes, Board Staff's compendium.

MS. HARE:  Is it this one?

MR. LANNI:  Does everybody have a copy?

MS. HARE:  So it is the one not identified as the Board Staff document; it starts off saying Essex Powerlines Corporation compendium?

MR. LANNI:  That is correct.

MS. HARE:  Okay, so that is K1.
EXHIBIT NO. K1:  Cross-Examination Compendium of Board Staff


MR. LANNI:  If I can turn your attention to Tab 1, page 6?  In response to Board Staff's Question No. 7, Essex has provided three tables.  They are entitled tables 6, 7 and 9 on this page 7, but I guess they should be table 7, table 8, and table 9, and that's how we will refer to them.

So table 9 represents amounts that Essex believes should remain in the accounts to be collected and returned to customers in the future; is that correct?

MR. DIMMEL:  Yes, that is correct.

MR. LANNI:  And what has Essex -- what work has Essex undertaken to establish that these amounts are accurate?  I presume there hasn't been a third-party audit of these amounts.

MR. DIMMEL:  No, there has not.

MR. LANNI:  Has there been any internal audit of these Amounts?

MR. RAY:  In essence, there were multiple third parties involved in revising the DVA schedule that was submitted on April 7th.  Those include Essex Energy Corporation and Elenchus.


MR. LANNI:  Okay.  Thank you.  Now, with respect to the column on the far right, for table -- the first table, it says -- the title is "Residual Amounts"; the second table, the title is "Estimated Remaining Misallocation"; and for the third table, the title is "Corrected Residual Amounts."

I wonder if you can help explain to me why the net for the first table is a debit of $109,000, roughly, as a debit to the utility, and in Table 9, the net or the proposed corrected residual amount, the net is a debit of approximately $183,000.  So it appears as if there is an increase to be collected by the utility as a result of the correction, and I just want to understand why.

MR. RAY:  So in table 8, the estimated remaining misallocation amounts on the far right column were calculated by using the -- by taking the first column in that same table 8, which is the 5,178,750, and then multiplying it by a percentage that was derived from table 7 above, and in this case it was approximately 71 percent and approximately 70 percent respectively for 1588 and 1589.

So differing -- slightly different percentages were used then to multiply by the misallocation recovered in rates from May 1st through January 31st to yield those results.

MS. SABHARWAL:  So but really the question is that the utility ends up recovering more than it should, so -- I can sort of tell you why it's that, why it's like that, because the misallocation was in the ratio of 1 to 1, so dollar for dollar.

So when you make the adjustment, it should really be done dollar for dollar.  So let's say 25 percent of the remaining misallocation is what probably needs to be adjusted in both accounts to get dollar for dollar adjustment so that the utility doesn't end up recovering more than it should.  That is just one point of view but --

MR. RAY:  And if I may respond to that.  We did see that and understand the logic behind looking at tab 2 of the compendium.  And I believe that is what you are referring to, that $109,000 versus the $183,000 that tab 2 looks at as a dollar for dollar.

We simply took a percentage based on what was collected and we do -- and when we did receive it yesterday, we reviewed it as a team.  We understand the logic, and we don't disagree with your logic that we see in tab 2.

MR. LANNI:  Okay.  So you have thought about, for lack of a better way of putting it, forcing it to be an even split?

MR. RAY:  Forcing it to be an even split is what tab 2 does.  Yes, we understand it, and we do not disagree with it.

[Witness panel confers]


MR. LANNI:  Okay.

MR. RAY:  In our discussions, we debated 183 versus 109, and we came to the conclusion that, if we did go with the 183, which we -- you know, there would be an amount that would eventually be settled with customers, but, again, we don't disagree with the $109,000 figure.

MR. LANNI:  Okay.  Thank you.  Now if I can turn your attention to tab 3 of Board Staff's compendium.  I am just going to ask you a couple of questions.

First of all, I will read something from the 2011 Chapter 3 filing requirements.

So in Appendix A, which is entitled Disposition of Residual Balance in the US of A account 1590 or 95, the 2006 regulatory assets process disposed of all balances in the regulatory asset accounts as of December 31st, 2004.  The decisions for each distributor resulted in the disposition of the approved amounts by way of a final rate rider and the transfer of the approved amounts to account 1590.  Likewise, any deferral and variance account balances post December 31st, 2004 that have been approved by the Board for disposition were disposed on a final basis, unless otherwise noted, and should have been transferred to account 1595.  Accounts 1590 and 1595 are part of the group 1 deferral and variance accounts as defined by the Board in the EDVAR report.


So this table here shows amounts that were disposed of over three consecutive proceedings of Essex, and account 1590 was used only for the dispositions approved -- was to be used only for the disposition approved in the 2006 EDR process.  Essex received approval to dispose of the residual amount in 1590 in its 2010 cost-of-service proceeding; correct?

MR. DIMMEL:  Yes.

MS. HARE:  Mr. Lanni, can I ask you to move closer to the mic?  You are actually quite faint.

MR. LANNI:  Sure.  Absolutely.

MS. HARE:  Thank you.

MR. LANNI:  I guess I'm asking why have these amounts continued to be booked to account 1590.

MR. RAY:  Can you clarify your question?  Why are the balances remaining in 1590 and not another account, or why have they not been recovered?

MR. LANNI:  No, it's the former question.  Would you agree that these amounts should have been booked to account 1595?

MR. DIMMEL:  Yes.

MS. SABHARWAL:  Can I ask a follow-up question?  So are you saying that, in 2012 and 2014, you were not using 1595; you were moving dispositions to 1590?  Is that what happened?

MR. DIMMEL:  No.  I was saying that there are dispositions that are in 1590.

MS. SABHARWAL:  It should have wiped out in 2010 when the disposition was done.  According to EPH, no more balances were to be recorded in this account, and once that final disposition of the residual amount was done in 2010, this should be -- it should have been -- it should have zero balance after that and not to be used after that.

MS. HARE:  Is there a question there?

MS. SABHARWAL:  Yes.  Why are there amounts -- why was 1590 disposed of three times?  It should have no balance after 2010 cost-of-service disposition.

MR. DIMMEL:  The answer to that question is I don't know.

MR. LANNI:  If I could turn your attention to tab 4 of Board Staff's compendium, please.  So Board Staff prepared this table comparing the billed consumption numbers filed by Essex using its RRR filings with the response by Essex to Question No. 4, Board Staff Question No. 4.  And would you agree that there -- I don't imagine you have the yearbook in front of you, but if you were to take the right-hand column as being accurate, would you agree that there are inconsistencies between the yearbook data for billed consumption and the responses for billed consumption in Board Staff --

MR. BARILE:  Counsel, if you were to accept tab 4 of Exhibit 1 on its face, I would agree with you.  What we've done since we received this yesterday afternoon is had somebody look into it.  Unfortunately, we couldn't come up with a reasonable response in time for the hearing today.  But we will certainly continue investigating and comparing the numbers --


MR. LANNI:  Okay.

MR. BARILE:  -- and provide an undertaking to you with regards to providing an explanation, or at least our position with regards to it.

MR. LANNI:  Thank you.

MS. HARE:  So, Mr. Lanni, please give that an undertaking number.

MR. LANNI:  We will give that undertaking J1.
UNDERTAKING NO. J1:  TO PROVIDE AN EXPLANATION FOR inconsistencies between the yearbook data for billed consumption and the responses for billed consumption

MR. LANNI:  Now in your response to SEC's question No. 1, which is at page 16 of tab 1, you give an indication that you have sought guidance from the OEB by e-mailing questions through the industry relations hotline.

I wonder if you could just expand on that and, in doing so, advise whether there is a process in place to ask similar questions to the IESO, and what resulted from that process.


MR. DIMMEL:  The process – like if we are unsure what to do with something, then we will send an e-mail to industry relations to try to get clarification.

On the IESO side of it, I am not sure what your question is.  Is there something in particular that you are --


MR. LANNI:  Well, if you had a question with respect to the global adjustment --


MR. DIMMEL:  Then we would contact people at the IESO and ask the question of them.  So we do have individuals there that we would question, and they would provide an answer to us.

MR. LANNI:  Are you aware of whether or not these questions to the OEB and the IESO were of an accounting nature?  Do you have any recollection?

MR. DIMMEL:  No, I do not.  To clarify, the ones with the OEB would be on an accounting basis.  Any questions to the IESO, I am not -- you know, I am not the only one that questions the IESO, so I can't answer that question.

MR. LANNI:  And you wouldn't have any recollection as to whether or not they related to accounts 1588 or 1589?

MR. DIMMEL:  I do not recall.

MR. LANNI:  Okay, thank you.  I can take you to tab 1, page 17 and this is a response to SEC No. 3.  The response indicates that balances are reviewed by -- or audited annually by a third party.  Can you please describe the audit process, and the level of detail in which deferral and variance accounts are examined by an external auditor?

MR. DIMMEL:  Yes.  The external auditors they go through and they verify the accounts and the entries we make from our sales accounts and cost accounts into the variance accounts.

So they, you know, go through all the entries and make sure they are correct and test them, and look at those entries and flow them into the accounts that we have to make sure that the balance on our balance sheet is supported.

MR. LANNI:  If I can refer you to tab 1, page 13?  This is similar to SEC's No. 2 at page 17.  The question simply asks how the -- to provide a detailed explanation as to how the error was detected internally.

And as a follow-up question to the response, I wondered -- given that the error has occurred since 2011, presumably causing large account balances, can you explain why a similar magnitude of balances did not trigger a review last year, or the year before?

I believe SEC No. 2, page 17, that shows that there were amounts of a significant magnitude in 2014 and 2013.

MR. DIMMEL:  Excuse me, what was your second reference?

MR. LANNI:  The response to SEC.  If I can take you to Board Staff compendium No. 5, at the bottom half of the page is the 2013 IR application closing balances, and the top half of the page is 2014.

I guess my question is:  Would you agree that both amounts are significant?

MR. DIMMEL:  Yes, they were increasing.

MR. LANNI:  And can you give an indication as to why these amounts didn't trigger a review in those years?

MR. DIMMEL:  There were a couple of things.  So number one, the global adjustment was increasing and the way 
our -- because we had the error in the percentage, we thought that we were overcharging customers initially.  So we thought, you know, that is why it was building.

The other aspect of it is we didn't dispose of these accounts either.  So we had a year where we didn't dispose them, so they were just growing because of that as well.

Is there anything you would like to add?

MR. RAY:  If I can add to that, over that same time period from Q4 of 2012 to Q4 of 2014, if you look at what global adjustment was doing in masking the problem, it was going from an average of $49 a megawatt-hour to about $85, so a 73 percent increase, not directly correlated to the balances that you referred to, but a significant increase.  And at the level where that error was occurring, it didn't trigger.

MR. LANNI:  So presumably your external auditors didn't catch this.  Has it caused the -- is that correct?

MR. BARILE:  That is correct.

MR. LANNI:  And has it caused the utility to reconsider how it engages external auditor?

MR. BARILE:  Given the circumstance and hindsight being 20/20, we would certainly reconsider, number one, the party doing the audit, whether we require another party other than the one we currently have doing it.  And, number two, what the specific scope of that party is going to be on a go-forward basis, based on hindsight.

MR. LANNI:  Okay. So given what we have learned over the course of this proceeding, what protocols have been put in place by the utility to best avoid these types of errors?

MR. BARILE:  I can speak to that, and if my colleagues want to add anything.  First and foremost, I will go back to the forms where it all started and where the error occurred.

One thing I'd add to what my colleague -- my colleague's explanation was with regards to the form is the first form, the form on page 21, was an automated form; so it came up with an automated calculation.

The second form, the one that came in at time-of-use, required a manual process to get to that percentage.

So what we have done, first and foremost, is ensuring that that process is again automated, which brings us to form 3 on page 23.

So we have tried to eliminate the human element of it which was present at the time of the error, and now we have an automated process.  So that is the first thing we did.

The second thing we did is -- I am sure in our responses you have seen that we have looked at the picture at an aggregate level.  You know, we looked at the OEB threshold and whether we were above that threshold or below that threshold.  Obviously, in hindsight again, looking at it a global or an aggregate level wasn't the most accurate way to go about that.  So we are looking at -- what we should have done and what we are doing is looking at the subaccounts now and looking specifically not at the global number, but at the specific micro level and subaccount level.

The other thing is more eyes.  Obviously, the more eyes that look at it, the more levels that look at it, more in-depth they look at it, the more chance that there is catching the error.

And the fourth thing, I guess, is, when we engage external parties to audit, we specifically ask them to look at these potential high-risk accounts and look at those more specifically and more in-depth so we can have some level of comfort in terms of our third-party auditors.

MS. SABHARWAL:  I have a follow-up question.  So when you do those forms, 1598 forms, obviously you don't have the exact consumption; you don't know the exact split of RPP versus non-RPP, because this is done within four days, I believe, of the month end.

MR. DIMMEL:  Yes.

MS. SABHARWAL:  So do you do a true-up at some point with the IESO for the RPP/non-RPP split?

MR. DIMMEL:  Yes.  The form is filled out the fourth day of the month and submitted, but it is based on the prior month's consumptions.  So eventually there is a true-up.  I can't answer that specifically when that occurs, but there is a true-up.

MS. SABHARWAL:  So you do have process in place where you do that true-up?

MR. DIMMEL:  Yes.

MS. SABHARWAL:  Okay.  And how often is that done?

MR. DIMMEL:  I don't know the answer.

MS. SABHARWAL:  Okay.  At least once a year?

MR. DIMMEL:  At least once a year, yes.

MS. SABHARWAL:  My point is just, at the end of the year, the balances that are going to be brought forward for disposition, is it -- do you make sure that those are final numbers and settled -- settlement is done for all of the RPP/non-RPP split?

MR. DIMMEL:  I don't know.

MS. SABHARWAL:  Thank you.

MR. LANNI:  I just have a couple final questions, and it's with respect to the audit review filed by Essex on April 7th.

If we can mark the covering letter of the audit report and the executive summary of the audit report as Exhibit K2, please.
EXHIBIT NO. K2:  COVERING LETTER AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF AUDIT REPORT

MR. LANNI:  Now, if I can turn your attention to page 2 -- sorry, page 1 of the report, and it's entitled "Executive Summary."

Now, this was an audit review of group 2 deferral and variance accounts of Essex Powerlines Corporation in March of 2013.  I am just going to read a paragraph:
"The audit review focuses on the balances of the US of A's for account 1525 and account 1572 as at December 31st, 2012.  Regulatory audit has concluded that some of the balances of the regulatory accounts as of December 31, 2012 were not accurately recorded in Essex Powerlines general ledgers and not accurately reflected in the US of As.  In addition, a regulatory audit has noted that Essex Powerlines has not followed some of the accounting procedures as stated in the accounting procedures handbook and its related guidance in recording the transaction in certain of its DVAs."


Now, I don't need to get into the specifics of the audit report.  My question is:  Did the results of that report, even though they were specific to two group 2 accounts, did it cause Essex to consider whether it should review and verify the balances in its other remaining accounts, including with respect to its group 1 accounts?

MR. DIMMEL:  Yes.  Like any audit that we have that highlights something, we go and we look at the other accounts.  Unfortunately, we went and looked at the other accounts still with the mindset that there was -- you know, that we still had the original mindset in place, so we still didn't recognize that that balance was increasing for the incorrect reason.

MR. LANNI:  Okay.  That answers the follow-up question I had as well.

That is all from Board Staff.  Thank you, panel.

MS. HARE:  Thank you.  I think we will take morning break now for 20 minutes, and I think there were a couple items that Essex was asked to follow up on.  If you are able to do that in the next 20 minutes, then that would be helpful.  Okay?  Thank you.

So we will come back at 11:25.
--- Recess taken at 11:05 a.m.
--- On resuming at 11:33 a.m.


MS. HARE:  Please be seated. So was Essex able to find the answers to some of the questions?  Thank you, yes.

MR. BARILE:  We have been able to come up what we think are proper responses to two of the undertakings.  I will refer to my colleague, Mr. Ray.

I know Board Staff is absent, and I only say that because she is the one who asked the question.  So I don't know if it would be appropriate to wait for her.

MS. HARE:  That's fine.  Carry on, please.

MR. RAY:  So I will handle the first one.  Basically, I believe the question was which global adjustment estimate is Essex Powerlines using, and was there a true-up based on the global adjustment mechanism, or estimate that is being used.

We used the second estimate due to the requirement to submit on the fourth business day of each month, and once a year, which is usually February, a true-up does occur where we compare what we submitted for global adjustment, based on second estimates.

We compare it what we would have submitted based on actuals, and true-up occurs and is reported to the IESO.

MS. HARE:  I think the question is why did you choose that second estimate as opposed to either preliminary or the third, which would be more accurate.

MR. RAY:  Then the answer to that is simply that the second estimate works for us for our timing of when we deliver our settlement information to the IESO, by the fourth business day of each month.  That is what is available to us, as I understand it.

MS. HARE:  Well, as I understand it, you have a choice of three dates.  So you chose the middle one, and I think question is why did you chose the middle one.

So saying it works for you -- could you embellish on that?  Maybe my colleague wants to ask.


MR. BARILE:  If I can attempt to clarify, the information we obtained -- and it may be not accurate, and therefore we should still undertake to the Board to provide that answer to you.

The information we obtained was only the second one is available due to timing when we do it on the fourth day. That might not be the case, which might change our answer.

MS. HARE:  Okay, so let's give that an undertaking number.

MR. BARILE:  Okay.

MR. LANNI:  So that will be undertaking J2.
UNDERTAKING NO. J2:  To explain Essex Powerlines’ rationale for using the second option; to describe the benefits or the cons to Essex as a utility, and the benefits and cons to rate-making implications

MR. BARILE:  Okay.  That is specifically why, if there is a choice, we make the choice of that one.

MS. HARE:  Correct.

MR. LANNI:  So Essex Powerlines’ rationale for using the second option.

MR. BARILE:  Very good, thank you.

MS. DUFF:  Maybe I could follow-up with that, please? The first option is based on an earlier estimate of the RPP/non-RPP split.  So in your deciding to wait until the latter date, what are the benefits or the cons to you as a utility, and what are the benefits and cons to perhaps the rate-making implications?

MR. BARILE:  Okay.

MS. HARE:  As opposed to option 1, 2, which is what is you’re doing, and 3.

MR. BARILE:  Okay.

MS. DUFF:  That would be helpful.

MR. BARILE:  Okay, understood, thank you.

MR. LANNI:  I think we can leave that as one undertaking, J2.

MS. HARE:  Yes. And the second piece of information that you were able to find, please?

MR. RAY:  Yes.  Essentially, it dealt with embedded generation and how were we handling it.  Basically, Essex Powerlines collects all the meter generation data from the embedded generation within its service territory on a monthly basis using a tool called Settlement Manager, and reports to IESO by class given the generation figures it records from the meters.

MS. HARE:  Okay, thank you.  I think we are ready, then, for cross-examination by Mr. Janigan. 
Cross-Examination by Mr. Janigan:


MR. JANIGAN:  Thank you very much, Madam Chair.  I have a very limited number of questions.

The first is to help me in relation to the numbers associated with the initial reply of the company, which had a request in there for an adjustment and reallocation between RPP and non-RPP customers of 11.5 million, and the number that is recorded elsewhere that there has been an over collection of 3.8 million from RPP customers.  How does the 11.5 become 3.8?

MR. BARILE:  Counsel, not to be disrespectful, but can you draw us to the attention of the document that has the 11.5, and then the other document that has the 3.8?

MR. JANIGAN:  Well, it's recorded in -- if you have Procedural Order No. 2, I believe it is noted therein on -- I believe on page 22 of the Procedural Order No. 2, if I am not mistaken.

I have, of course, neglected to bring that with me.

MS. DUFF:  It's Procedural Order No. 3, page 3.

MR. JANIGAN:  I am sorry; thank you very much.  It’s a response to the interrogatories in the original proceeding.

MR. BARILE:  We have it, yes.  And then the 3.8 reference is to which document?  The same document or a different document?

MR. JANIGAN:  No, this is the document that -- this is contained in a number of different references in the interrogatories that refer to the repayment of the entire 3.8 million that's been over collected.

MR. BARILE:  If I could just have a moment, sorry.

MR. JANIGAN:  Look at SEC 7(a).


MR. BARILE:  Okay, so I am looking at Exhibit 1, page 7, is that correct?  Table 8?

MR. JANIGAN:  And how do we get to -- from the 3.8 that has been over-collected from the 11.5 million that was initially proposed to be rebalanced?

MR. DIMMEL:  To respond to your question, the 11.5 million covers 11, 12 and 13.  The 11 and 12 portion that was embedded into rates, the 3.8 million is what has been recovered to date to the end of January.

MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  And the 11.5 million therefore had a forward-looking aspect to it?

MR. BARILE:  That's right.

MR. JANIGAN:  Is that right?

MR. BARILE:  Yes.

MR. JANIGAN:  All right, thank you very much. Just taking you back to testimony this morning, on page 22, where apparently the error was made, I understand that it is the -- involves a manual calculation on the bottom of the page in front of the percentage figure.

MS. HARE:  Sorry, to be clear, Mr. Janigan, we are look at the Board Staff compendium page 22, tab 1; is that correct?

MR. JANIGAN:  This is Essex Powerlines, I believe – oh, has this been prepared by Board Staff?

MS. HARE:  Yes, so it's K1.

MR. JANIGAN:  Okay, page 22.

MS. HARE:  Yes.

MR. JANIGAN:  Sorry.  Was that correct?  Or do you want me to repeat the question?

MR. BARILE:  Please, if you can.

MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  I understand that the error that led to the misallocation arose from -- on this 1598 summary, page 22, at the bottom of the page there was a manual calculation done to arrive at the percentage at the bottom of the page; is that correct?  Is that where it happened?

MR. DIMMEL:  Yes, the error occurred from a manual calculation that was input into the spreadsheet.  And that was a one-time error that just perpetuated, because once it was in the spreadsheet, it was always used.

MR. JANIGAN:  Is that the -- as I understand it, and I know that you, in VECC No. 2 at page 13, you went through process by which entries are made.

But as I understand it, to summarize, the first person that would have made the error would have been the business process analyst; is that correct?  

MR. DIMMEL:  The person that would have wrongly verified that percentage was the operations and regulatory accounting analyst.


MR. JANIGAN:  So they would be the first person to do that calculation? 


MR. DIMMEL:  She would have been the one to --


MR. JANIGAN:  Verify the calculation?


MR. DIMMEL:  Right.


MR. JANIGAN:  So somebody before that did the calculation.  Was that the business process analyst or somebody working for the business process analyst? 


MR. DIMMEL:  It would have been the accounts payable senior clerk.


MR. JANIGAN:  So a senior clerk.  Then the business process analyst would have taken a look at it?


MR. DIMMEL:  Yes.


MR. JANIGAN:  And then it would have been submitted to the operations and regulatory analyst for verification?


MR. DIMMEL:  Yes.


MR. JANIGAN:  And then it would have been submitted to the vice-president of regulatory affairs for scrutiny?


MR. DIMMEL:  No.


MR. JANIGAN:  No scrutiny by the VP of regulatory affairs?


MR. DIMMEL:  No.


MR. JANIGAN:  They wouldn't look it over at all?  They just pass it on?


MR. DIMMEL:  No, not at that detailed level.


MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  I note that in your -- I believe in your description of how things take place, on page 13 in response to my Interrogatory No. 2, it seems to include the VP regulatory affairs in that chain.


It says -- I'm reading at the top of page 14:

"The input to the model is completed by the operations and regulatory accounting analyst, and a completed model is reviewed by the VP of regulatory affairs."


MR. DIMMEL:  Yes.  But you're talking -- that is referring to the IRM filing, not the process of recording the non-RPP and RPP split.


MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  So he or she would not look that number over at all?


MR. DIMMEL:  No.  Not at the detailed level, no.


MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  All right.  What level would they be looking at?


MR. DIMMEL:  As referred to in the evidence here is it is more at a higher level, a month-to-month comparison of variance accounts in total.


MR. JANIGAN:  All right.  So some review, but not on a detailed level; is that correct?


MR. DIMMEL:  Correct.


MR. JANIGAN:  All right.  And after that, there is an audit done; is that correct? 


MR. DIMMEL:  Yes.


MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  So the mistake made by the senior clerk went by, one, two, three, four different reviews of different complexity and wasn't caught; is that correct?


MR. DIMMEL:  Yes. 


MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  Now, as I understand from your testimony, that there was -- that the reason that this arose was that there were a lot of new accounting matters to deal with at this point in time, or is that the theory?


MR. BARILE:  I wouldn't classify it as new accounting matters.  There were different variables that weren't present prior to, including a new form.


MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  Is that the explanation for why the error occurred or why the error wasn't caught?


MR. BARILE:  I believe that is the explanation with respect to why the error wasn't caught.


MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  Now, dealing with your return on equity, is the return on equity, or the earned return, is that paid directly to your municipal owners off the top, or do you reinvest, or what happens to it? 


MR. DIMMEL:  The return on equity goes into retained earnings, and we do issue a dividend from there, but they do not get 100 percent of it.


MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  Now, on page 19, which is SEC Interrogatory No. 7, there's a number of scenarios that were put to you with respect to the consequences of a full payment to the RPP customers of over-collection.  In each of these scenarios, when you gave the consequences, did you assume that the regulated rate of return would be paid anyway to the owners? 


MR. DIMMEL:  The responses were based on our 2015 forecast of what our regulated return would be. 


MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  But did it assume, first of all, for example -- what I don't understand is:  If, in fact, you take 2 million from your rate of return and pay it instead to the RPP rather than your municipal owners, why does that cause a cash flow problem in your company? 


MR. DIMMEL:  It would cause a cash flow problem because we are not collecting enough cash.  I don't think it relates to how much we are paying out; it does relate to our borrowings for regular operations.  So...


MR. JANIGAN:  Well, what would happen if you did the payout at the end of the year when you make a deduction from retained earnings?  Presumably at that point in time there would be no cash flow difficulty.


MR. DIMMEL:  If the cash flow was tight, there would be no dividend issue.


MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  And in circumstances where -- in ordinary circumstances, you remit a portion of your retained earnings to your municipal owners.  If that was, in fact, remitted to the RPP customers, wouldn't you be in the same position that you would have been in from a cash flow standpoint? 


MR. DIMMEL:  The amount that you are asking that's put in front of us to rebate to the RPP customers far exceeds that dividend.


MR. JANIGAN:  I understand that that was done on the basis of a one-year payback, this particular --


MR. DIMMEL:  The numbers provided here were based on additional loans over a five-year period. 


MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  So if you collected 3.8 million over a five-year period by way of a reduction in the return on equity, you are saying that that would cause cash flow difficulty? 


MR. DIMMEL:  Yes.


MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  And, well, let me see now.  Your response here to page 19 said:

"The impact to refund the full amount that was over-collected of 3.8 million would mean a loss of approximately 200 percent of an annual regulated return and over 63 times materiality."


That's over one year, isn't it? 


MR. DIMMEL:  Yes.  That would be based on a one-year's return.


MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  So we don't have a calculation based on repaying this over a five-year period of time and what it would mean for your cash flow; correct?


MR. DIMMEL:  No.


MR. JANIGAN:  No?  Okay. 


MR. DIMMEL:  The cash flow, though, I based on a loan over five years, so if I have the cash flow impact of the loan over five years.


MR. JANIGAN:  But if the scenario that I put to you was applicable, that, in fact, you remitted to the RPP customers a percentage of your retained earnings that would ordinarily go to your municipal owners, then we wouldn't have the cash flow problem that you have set out herein, would we? 


MR. DIMMEL:  I don't know.  I would like to add that the adjustment for that would affect our debt to equity ratio -- that's the point -- because it would reduce our equity amount.


MR. JANIGAN:  If, in fact, you had to make debt, even if you had to incur debt to do so?


MR. DIMMEL:  Yes.


MR. JANIGAN:  But in the event it was repaid over a five-year period, we don't know what effect it is going to have on your cash flow.

MR. DIMMEL:  Well, based on my estimate of using a loan over five years, that cash flow impact would cause us to be outside of our covenants.

MR. JANIGAN:  Yes, but the reason you have you're the loan over five years is because you are going to repay it back in one year in this scenario, right? 

MR. DIMMEL:  Yes. 

MR. JANIGAN:  Okay.  Thank you, those are all my questions.

MS. HARE:  Then before Mr. Rubenstein -- can I just ask you to follow-up?  When you said, Mr. Dimmel, "outside of our covenants", can you explain what that means?

MR. DIMMEL:  That would mean we'd be defaulting in our covenants to the bank.

MS. HARE:  Okay, thank you.  Mr. Rubenstein, please proceed.

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Thank you very much, Madam Chair.

Cross-Examination by Mr. Rubenstein:


MR. RUBENSTEIN:  If the can take you back to page 22 under tab 1?  This is the form we have been talking about, and I just want to make sure I am clear.

Now, in response to your questions by Mr. Janigan, I understood that the error occurred because the calculation that was done to enter in the RPP/non-RPP split was incorrect; am I correct? 

MR. DIMMEL:  Yes.

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  And then -- and that calculation is done manually? 

MR. DIMMEL:  It was done manually the one time and input into the spreadsheet.

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Now, my understanding -- can I ask you why is the calculation done manually and not redone every month? 

MR. DIMMEL:  Because once it's in the form, it would automatically pull the -- we assumed it was pulling the correct numbers.

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Let me ask you about the calculation.  Can you help, sort of at a high level, explain to me how one determines -- when the first individual did the RPP/non-RPP split, can you explain to me sort of at a high level what goes into that calculation?  How does one determine that split?

MR. DIMMEL:  Are you asking -- is the question for the error, or for the corrected? 

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  The correct -- help me understand what the calculation is.

MR. BARILE:  How the person did it in error, or how it is supposed to be done correctly?

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  What the calculation is made up of.  What numbers go into it, and how does one determine it.


MR. DIMMEL:  It pulls data from another tab that has the cost of power designated for the RPP customers, and then it takes that as a total of the total billed consumption to come up with a percentage.

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  And that split would not change every month depending on sales, customers, which customers are in the RPP class, or which would be -- would buy RPP and which would be non-RPP?


MR. DIMMEL:  That is what the formula does is calculate that.  So if it changes, it shows in the formula that it is changing.

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  So then the problem was that the formula itself was coded incorrectly?

MR. DIMMEL:  Yes.

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  All right.  Now, if I could take you to VECC 3, this is at tab 1, page 14. 

There was discussion about the checks and balances in the oversight, and the response says:
"All business process analysts variance account work is verified, authorized, and approved by the operation regulatory accounts analyst.  The VP regulatory affairs reviews and confirms the operation, and regulatory analysts work in the financial statement level."

MR. BARILE:  Excuse me, it says "at the financial".

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  I apologize; it says "at the financial statement level".

I want to focus on the first sentence, where it says "verified, authorized, and approved". Can you explain to me what you mean by "verified"?  In detail, what exactly what is this person doing to verify?

MR. DIMMEL:  The business process analyst gathers the information from the general ledger, inputs that into a spreadsheet. 

The operations regulatory accounting analyst reviews that, and then authorizes the business process analyst to make journal entries that are again approved by the operations and regulatory analyst.

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Again, I am just trying to understand what -- when you say "reviews", what does that actually practically mean?

MR. DIMMEL:  She reviews -- she reviews the data that's pulled from the general ledger system to make sure that she has pulled the right data and that it balances -- that it all balances to the general ledger.

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  So all it is looking at is to ensure the numbers were pulled from the right place, and that there is a balance?

MR. DIMMEL:  Yes.

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  So when we were talking about the coding issue and, in response to Mr. Janigan, you said the accounts payable clerk first made the -- created the formula, essentially; am I correct?

MR. DIMMEL:  Yes.

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  And then the first layer would be the business process analyst who reviewed that, correct? 

MR. DIMMEL:  No, in that case, that person reports to the operations and regulatory analyst.

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  So then the operation regulatory analyst reviewed that, correct?

MR. DIMMEL:  Yes.

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  And what did that look -- what did that review process look like?

MR. DIMMEL:  She would have looked at the -- when that first error occurred and the operations and regulatory analyst looked at it, and -- at the time, she was thinking of time-of-use pricing.  So time-of-use pricing to her was -- 95 percent of our customers were on time-of-use pricing.

So the percent that came out was like around 5 percent, so she was going, oh, 95 percent of our people are on time-of-use pricing.  So 5 percent makes sense that the non-time-of-use people is correct.  It is wrong logic, but that was the logic at the time.

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  All right, and then that was not -- that level of detail was not reviewed by the VP regulatory affairs.

MR. DIMMEL:  No.

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  All right, thank you very much. I just want to confirm something.  There is -- in a number of questions in the interrogatories, you were asked about the processes. 

Am I correct that those were the processes in place at the time of the error, not the new processes that are now in place?

MR. BARILE:  That's correct.

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Thank you.  Now with respect to some of the improvements, in response to Board Staff's question you said, essentially, that more people are going to be looking at this now.  Do you recall that?

MR. BARILE:  That was part of the answer, yes.

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  So what aspect was -- can you explain who now is going to look at this that was not looking at it before?  How are they looking at it now which they were not looking at it before?

MR. DIMMEL:  The VP of regulatory affair will be taking a more in-depth review of the accounts on a monthly basis, and that includes the other -- that will include -- there will be additional review by me at a more detailed level, as well we will have, on a quarterly basis, other people look at it, like a third-party review.

As well, we are writing up additional policies and procedures detailed of how these accounts are reconciled and what to look out for.

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Now, the four positions that we have spoken about today -- the VP regulatory affairs, the business process analyst, the operations and regulatory accounting analyst, and the accounts payable clerk -- are they employees of Essex Energy Corp. or Essex Powerlines?  Who do they report to between the two general managers on the panel?

MR. BARILE:  Essex Powerlines.

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  So then how does this work?  My understanding from Mr. Ray, who is in charge of Essex Energy, provides settlement services, would the issues that we've discussed today fall under the settlement services that you provide?

MR. RAY:  The error we are discussing today?  No. 

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  All right.

MR. RAY:  Essex Energy provides services related reporting to IESO, and some of the answers that were given to the questions where we went to break and deliberated and came back with answers.

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Now with respect again to page 22, this form, my understanding from earlier on today that testimony was before time-of-use, you had -- it was done automatically, and then it was moved to a manual process.  And now one of the things you are going to correct is you are moving it to an automatic process again.  Am I correct?

MR. BARILE:  That is correct; that has been done already.

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Why did you move from an automatic process to a manual process in the first place? 

MR. DIMMEL:  Previously it was an embedded part of the form.  So when we went to the new form, it was a one-time error that occurred embedding that calculation into the form.

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  I still don't understand why you moved from the automatic to the manual.

MR. DIMMEL:  It was a new form, and it didn't have that calculation.

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  So this would have been the first -- since it was the first time? 

MR. DIMMEL:  Right.

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  All right.  Thank you very much.

Now, in response to SEC No. 7, you were asked a number of scenarios, repayment scenarios, and you have discussed this with Mr. Janigan.  And it seems, in your response to No. C -- that is a return of 10 per cent of the over-collection -- none of the cash flow issues occur; am I correct? 

MR. DIMMEL:  Yes. 

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  At what percentages of the return do the cash flow issues not occur? 

MR. BARILE:  Since we were only asked to respond to defined percentages, we would have to go back and do that analysis.

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Are you able to undertake to do that, or what the amount of the 3.8 million that would have to be returned in one year would not cause cash flow issues that you have described in the other previous...

MR. BARILE:  I suspect it is going to be that -- an undertaking that is going to require more work than the other undertakings, so I will use -- I will give our best efforts in order to come up with some reasonable number.  You know, we are going to do a calculation of 15 per cent, then 16 per cent, 17 per cent, 18 per cent, 19 per cent.  So we are going to have to go through up the ladder to see what number is going to be the tipping point, I guess you can say.  So that might be a cumbersome process, but we can certainly use our best efforts to do that.

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Well, I leave it to you to provide as much detail as you want.  I would recommend you be as specific as possible --

MR. BARILE:  That's fair.

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  -- with respect to that answer.

MR. DIMMEL:  I would like to add to that that we do have, you know, the issue of a possible new Leamington TS that we don't know what the impact of that is going to be for us at this time, so that factors into the cash flow and the debt covenants calculation that we are not sure what the total impact of that is going to be.

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  You are free to qualify the response in any way you want.

MR. BARILE:  Okay.  That's fair.  Yes. 

MR. LANNI:  We could mark that as undertaking J3, but I might also ask for your best estimate in terms of your timing for the response.
UNDERTAKING NO. J3:  To calculate at what percentages of the return do the cash flow issues not occur


MR. BARILE:  I apologize for my ignorance, but undertakings in a normal course, for the ones that we have already given, what is the expectation with respect to those? 

MS. HARE:  Well, it all affects the timing as we go forward in terms of argument in-chief and submissions.  Parties cannot put in their submissions without seeing the answers to this.

MR. BARILE:  Okay.  If I could just have a moment to confer? 

MS. HARE:  Sure.

MR. BARILE:  One week, is that reasonable? 

MR. LANNI:  Is that fine with the panel?

MS. HARE:  Yes, that's fine.

MS. DUFF:  I would just like to clarify.  Mr. Rubenstein, were you looking for the return on equity portion?  How many years it would take?

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Well, I was using the assumption that they made with respect to the answer.

MS. DUFF:  Yes.

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  So it's a repayment over one year.  I was just trying to understand.  What percentage of the -- or in the dollars; it doesn't matter to me -- does not cause the cash flow concerns which they provided.

MS. DUFF:  Okay.  I understand you are saying the answer will be in dollars.

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Well, I could do the calculation if it's in percentage based on their forecast.

MS. DUFF:  Thank you.

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Or they can provide.  It doesn't matter.

Those are my questions.  Thank you very much.

MS. HARE:  Thank you.  The Panel does have some questions.
Questions by the Board:


MS. DUFF:  If we can just turn to -- I will refer to all my questions the Board Staff compendium, and it's regarding the deferral and variance accounts' disposition, you know, as you have proposed for the 2013 variance account balances.

So I suppose the easiest way is to look at page 8 and 9, and here you are calculating the rate riders and how they will be disposed among the different rate classes.  And perhaps you could explain to me, for the record, the general service, 3000 to 4999 kilowatts, and that is always blank.  I don't think we have spoken about, but I know it's in the evidence regarding that rate class and why there are no kilowatt hours associated with that.

MR. DIMMEL:  We no longer have any customers in that rate class.

MS. DUFF:  And in 2013, did you? 

MR. DIMMEL:  Yes. 

MS. DUFF:  And who were they? 

MR. DIMMEL:  It was Heinz.  It was a company called Heinz that is no longer operating.

MS. DUFF:  And that was the only customer you had in that rate class?


MR. DIMMEL:  Yes.  We do have one other customer; it's Hydro One, but they are not affected by this.  They do not get the rate riders.  They only get fixed charges.

MS. DUFF:  And what is the nature of the service that you provide Hydro One and why they would not get a rate rider?

MR. DIMMEL:  They're just an embedded distributor, and we just set them up based on their consumption, but there is certain -- there is certain points that -- you know, we build different points of their connection to our system, and some have more than others, but it depends on where it is that how much our actual distribution charges apply.

MS. DUFF:  And the Heinz client, if I can use the name, were they a RPP or a non-RPP customer?

MR. DIMMEL:  They would have been a non-RPP customer.

MS. DUFF:  So when I look to the -- on page 5, where you are providing -- the question was the consumption report by customer class to support the correct allocation between RPP and non-RPP customers.  In that calculation on page 5 -- it's also table 5 where the split is 58.77 per cent to RPP and 41.23 per cent to non-RPP -- is Heinz included in those numbers?

MR. DIMMEL:  Yes, they would have.

MS. DUFF:  So the split between the RPP and the non-RPP group includes a volume that does not exist and will not be part of the revenue recovery?

MR. DIMMEL:  Because this is historical, yes. 

MS. DUFF:  So the RPP -- the non-RPP, if that customer was in the non-RPP group, that 41 per cent is higher than it would have been had the Heinz volumes been removed?

MR. DIMMEL:  You have to understand that Heinz was winding down, and they also have two generators on their own, so even though they are classified as intermediate when they did pull from us --

MS. DUFF:  Yes.

MR. DIMMEL:  There is quite a few months where they don't have large consumption.  So overall the consumption, I don't think, would skew that much.

MS. DUFF:  Would you be able to provide that with the -- this Table 5 with those volumes excluded.

MR. DIMMEL:  Yes.  We'd be able to.  Yes.  For all three of these? 

MS. DUFF:  No, just table 5.  We are just talking about the 2013 year, because that is -- so to the extent that the Heinz volumes were included in the non-RPP group, the non-RPP group are allocated costs which were then designing rate riders to recover those costs.

MR. DIMMEL:  Yes.

MS. DUFF:  So if I am a non-RPP customer that still is using your services, will my rate rider be higher than it would have been had Heinz still been in business?

MR. DIMMEL:  I don't know the answer to that.

MS. DUFF:  But as a class, there is one split:  RPP and non-RPP?

MR. DIMMEL:  Mm-hmm.

MS. DUFF:  You have allocated costs to the non-RPP group.  There are costs there that have to be recovered.  Now we are going to figure out the billing determinants to determine what those rate riders are.  The billing determinants are the non-RPP customers.

MR. DIMMEL:  Yes.

MS. DUFF:  Thank you.

MR. LANNI:  Can we mark that as an undertaking, J4, please?

MS. DUFF:  Yes.  That is just reproducing table 5 for 2013 with those volumes excluded. 
UNDERTAKING NO. J4:  To reproduce Table 5 for 2013 with those volumes excluded.


MS. DUFF:  And are you able to also identify the Hydro One volumes; is that possible? 

MR. DIMMEL:  Yes.

MS. DUFF:  Is that difficult?  I don't want to create extra work.

MR. DIMMEL:  No.  I believe -- no, that's...

MS. DUFF:  Thank you.  That would be helpful.

The yet-to-be-billed residual amount, so it is the -- we have been referring to that as when the rate riders were stayed, we -- you ceased collection of the rate riders.  This is relating to the 2011 and '12 deferral and variance account balances, so you have that dollar amount which is -- if you can find it before me, please identify it.

MR. DIMMEL:  It is page 7, I believe, in table 9. 

MS. DUFF:  Yes, the residual amount.  And the way the questions were appended to Procedural Order No. 3, the Board had asked you to provide a proposed disposition of that residual amount, starting May 1, 2015. 

Is that your proposal?  I mean, would you agree with that proposal in terms of using the future kilowatt consumption to happen after May 1st for that residual amount?  Have you given it some thought as to what some of your other rate-making options would be? 

MR. DIMMEL:  That is what we proposed.  I am not sure what other rate-making options there would be.

MS. DUFF:  That is fair enough.  But when we stay the rate riders, there was consumption that's actually happened from February, March, and yet April to be defined.  Do you have actual numbers for February and March, actual kilowatt consumption?  Had those rate riders not stayed, you would have continued to --

 
MR. DIMMEL:  Yes, yes.

MS. DUFF:  -- put them on customers' bills associated with the kilowatts consumed?  And when will you have actuals for April?

MR. DIMMEL:  We would not have -- are you talking about billed month April? 

MS. DUFF:  Yes.

MR. DIMMEL:  Those would be available the 1st of May. 

MS. DUFF:  Now, at what month did Heinz cease drawing power through your system, approximately?  It was sometime in 2014?

MR. DIMMEL:  No.

MS. DUFF:  I thought I remembered --


MR. BARILE:  Either 2013 -- late 2013, or 2014.

MR. DIMMEL:  It was in May of one of those years.

MS. DUFF:  So they had already ceased being a customer of yours during the period that we are talking about this yet-to-be-billed residual amount?

MR. BARILE:  Possibly, subject to verification, yes. 

MR. LANNI:  Panel, if you can indulge us for a minute, we might be able to find you a date.

MS. HARE:  I recall June 2013; does that sound right? 

MR. DIMMEL:  May or June is the time period, yes. 

MR. LANNI:  That was our recollection as well.

MS. DUFF:  So one thing that you did help clarify for me -- I wasn't sure if somehow the Board in its questions had stated a proposal for recovery of that yet-to-be-billed residual amount, or if that was in fact the proposal for Essex Powerlines, that it be on a forward basis based on yet-to-be-billed from May 1st, 2015, for a one-year period.

MR. DIMMEL:  Yes, we would assume it would go into the 1595 account or whatever, and then be settled in our next IRM period; that was our assumption.

MS. HARE:  You know, the reason we are asking this is because knowing that Heinz -- Heinz was a big company in Leamington, a significant company.  But then, Mr. Dimmel, you said that they had their own two generators and were not operating all the time.  So maybe we are making a wrong assumption in that they’re a large customer.

So what troubles us is who picks up -- you know, the customer is gone, so now you can't charge a customer that is not there.  But we are assuming that it is a significant amount, and maybe it isn't.  So that is the kind of thing that would be helpful for us to understand.

MR. BARILE:  I see where the Board is going; I understand. 

I think -- not to cloud the issue, but there was somebody who replaced Heinz.  So Heinz just didn't disappear.

MS. HARE:  I see.

MR. BARILE:  Somebody is in that Heinz plant now -- maybe not using a much as Heinz, but there is somebody replacing them. 

So it is not like somebody left our jurisdiction.  There is still somebody operating that plant.  So the Heinz name might be gone, but there is still somebody there that's received the benefit of the credits that Heinz used to get, or vice versa.

MR. DIMMEL:  Yes, but they don't -- they are not consuming near Heinz would have consumed when they were not on their generators.

MS. DUFF:  They are in the other GS class.

MR. DIMMEL:  Yes, their class right now is GS less than 50 -- I am sorry, GS 50 to 2999.

MS. DUFF:  Thank you.

MR. LANNI:  Panel, for the purpose of the record, Heinz did cease in June 2014.

MS. HARE:  '14, not '13?

MR. LANNI:  That's correct.

MR. BARILE:  And just for the record, there was a seamless transition to a new operator at that time. 

MS. DUFF:  When the Board issued its -- I think it was a rate order ceasing the rate riders for -- I am talking again about this yet-to-be-billed residual amount, what customer response did you get from your offices -- there must have been a significant change to the non-RPP bills when those rate riders were stayed.

MR. BARILE:  I can indicate to the Board that I -- first of all, we had some training with regards to our staff, to anticipate these type of calls.  Staff was directed that all calls would be directed towards myself.

To date, I have received two calls, one from Hydro One and it was in regards to their embedded generation.  They did notice the change.  I explained to them where we were in the process, and they just informed me to let him know on a go-forward basis how it was going to be dealt with by the Board; so that one Hydro One.

And we also had a customer greater than 50 -- I won't identify the customer for the record, unless you want me to.

MS. DUFF:  No, no.

MR. BARILE:  It was a between 50 and 2999 customer.  Their actual primary purpose of calling was because their commodity price had gone up so much over the past month.  So the primary purpose of their call was why did my commodity price go up so high, which led to the discussion of the removal of the rate rider also.

So those are the only two calls that I have received that I have been directed to be given to me specifically to the address this issue.

MS. DUFF:  And regarding Hydro One, as an embedded Distributor, they are – they can receive the rate riders?  I am looking to you to answer that.  But as a GS customer, they are not? 

MR. BARILE:  I understood from my speaking to him it was with regards to ten accounts.  Whether those ten accounts were embedded accounts, I am not sure.  But that was my understanding at the time that I spoke to him.

MS. DUFF:  And they are affected by the rate riders?  The trigger was the rate order, which stopped the rate riders from being charged.

MR. BARILE:  Correct, correct.  Yes, yes. 

MS. DUFF:  Just a few smaller items.  Sorry, I just have my own notes, and I am just trying to compare it so everybody can follow along.

On page 4 of tab 1 of K1, this is the table 2, which is comparing the Board-approved balances of principal and interest and the deviated schedule which is filed in this proceeding.

In account 1588, there is a note here:  
"Also included in this difference is the subsequently identified $50,000 adjustment."


Can you just explain to me what the nature of the adjustment is after the Board approved, the dollar amounts? 

MR. RAY:  With respect to the $50,000 in table 2, that was the result of a year-end audit whereby $50,000 -- a $50,000 adjustment was made, and it was identified to the OEB at that time and approved.

MS. DUFF:  So your external auditors identified the $50,000 difference?

MR. RAY:  I believe that to be the case.

MS. DUFF:  And your materiality threshold for Essex -- so is this panel being asked to approve that $50,000 adjustment?

MR. RAY:  No, no.  It is just being identified as one reason why there were differences between the two columns there, the second and the third column.

MS. DUFF:  Because it's a credit of $50,000.  The variance is decreasing the amount the Board approved. Anyhow, if you could just please clarify with your legal counsel if that's something you need this Board to approve.

MR. BARILE:  We don't think so, but we will verify that with counsel.

MR. LANNI:  We will mark has the undertaking J5.  Thank you.
UNDERTAKING NO. J5:  to explain the credit of $50,000


MS. DUFF:  The obvious next question is:  How does that follow into the rate rider calculation? And the materiality threshold is -- is it 56?

MR. DIMMEL:  60,000.

MS. DUFF:  Pardon me?

MR. DIMMEL:  Our materiality is 60,000.

MS. DUFF:  Thank you.  I have one question about your external audit that is conducted.  When you external auditor is reviewing your year-end financials, are they referring to the uniform system of accounts in the Accounting Procedures Handbook of the Board?  Do you provide them with those documents?

MR. DIMMEL:  Yes, they have those documents, and they are aware of them.

MS. DUFF:  And their engagement includes their certification that they have audited in respect to those two documents?

MR. DIMMEL:  I don't know if -- like, in our engagement, they are supposed to review those accounts, so yes.

MS. DUFF:  Thank you.  That's it.  Thank you.

MS. HARE:  I have just a couple follow-up questions from things that Ms. Duff was going after.  What have you told your RPP customers?  RPP, so that would be mainly residential customers.

MR. BARILE:  I haven't had any contact with any residential customers.

MS. HARE:  But there was also no announcement, no newspaper, no bill insert saying that there was an error? 

MR. BARILE:  No.  I think the thinking was we wanted to see the finality of the process before we informed our customers in terms of the outcome.

MS. HARE:  Okay.  And have you told your external auditors that this is going on? 

MR. DIMMEL:  Yes.

MS. HARE:  Okay.  And what was their reaction? 

MR. DIMMEL:  Their reaction was similar to -- they wanted to see what the end result was going to be out of the process.

MS. HARE:  And, similarly, your board of directors, they are aware of this?

MR. BARILE:  The board of directors have been fully aware of the ongoing issue, yes.

MS. HARE:  And what do they think a fair resolution would be? 

MR. BARILE:  I would be speculating in terms of their individual opinions.  Some have expressed the opinion that, at the end of the day, the utility did not benefit in any way from what -- from the error.  It was between two customer classes, and they did not see why the utility should be penalized or suffer as a result of not benefitting themselves, but, again, that is just the opinion of some.  Others did not give an opinion.  They just absorbed what was presented to them in terms of the ongoing process.

And I can fairly state that they are all waiting for some kind of a direction from the Board in terms of how this is ultimately going to play out.

MS. HARE:  Okay.  Thank you.

MS. DUFF:  I just had one more question just to make sure.  Again, this is going back to the questions of Procedural Order No. 3, and I just wanted to make sure that the disposition period, the two and the four years for the two different accounts, I wanted to make sure from Essex that that was still your proposal, given all the events that have happened and the -- you know, restating the continuity schedules.  I know that we asked for that, but what is your proposal for the disposition periods? 

MR. DIMMEL:  Yes.  We are still in agreement with the -- proposing the two-year for the RPP and the four-year for the non-RPP.

MS. DUFF:  And all the other group 1 account balances, all other changes would be over the one-year period? 

MR. DIMMEL:  Yes.

MS. DUFF:  Thank you.  That's it.

MS. HARE:  Okay.  Thank you very much, witnesses.  This has been helpful.  I think what we need to do now before we close for the day is set up a schedule, and I know that Mr. Lanni canvassed -- oh, I'm very sorry.  You have a chance for redirect.

MR. STOLL:  Yes. 

MS. HARE:  It's lunchtime, sorry.  Yes, please proceed.

MR. STOLL:  I only have a couple questions that I would just like to clarify. 
Re-Examination by Mr. Stoll:

MR. STOLL:  Panel, you'll -- do you recall the earlier conversation you had around the tables -- the three tables in the Board Staff compendium?  I think it's seven, eight, and nine.

MR. BARILE:  Page 7, Exhibit 1?

MR. STOLL:  Yes, there's the three tables on page 7.

And do you recall the conversation you had with Board Staff regarding a different option or the difference between the $109,000 and $180,000, which I believe you had indicated in your numbers?  Do you recall that conversation?

MR. BARILE:  Yes.

MR. STOLL:  Okay.  If I am a customer of Essex and we are looking at the end of the day, is the customer in any different position between your proposal and Board Staff's proposal, looking at the end of the day when all the -- when everything is cleared? 

MR. DIMMEL:  The answer to that is:  I don't think there is a difference, because eventually it all goes into the variance account that's -- you know, the difference of what we are saying will end up in the variance account and be settled with the customers ultimately.  So I think it is just a timing difference, perhaps, of when that's given back to the customer.

MR. STOLL:  Okay.  And with respect to -- there was a conversation regarding the pages in the audit report; do you recall that conversation?

MR. BARILE:  Yes.

MR. STOLL:  Okay.  Were there any ratepayer impacts as a result of the audit report?

MR. DIMMEL:  No.

MR. STOLL:  Okay.  Those are my questions.

MS. HARE:  Okay.  Thank you.
Procedural Matters:


Okay.  So now let's talk about a schedule.  And I think, Mr. Lanni, you canvassed the other parties, but maybe you weren't aware that undertakings will now be due on April 21st.  Is that what we agreed to, one week?  So does that change your proposed schedule?

MR. LANNI:  Well, I think it sets us back a week. 

MS. HARE:  Let me float some dates.  So if undertakings are due April 21st, I am suggesting -- Mr. Stoll, you want to say something?

MR. STOLL:  I was going to say I think we had canvassed an April 22nd date for our submissions in-chief.

MS. HARE:  That is good.  I was going to suggest the 23rd, but that is good too.

MR. STOLL:  Either date is fine.  Like, it's not --


MS. HARE:  Let's go with the 23rd.  It gives you two days after the undertaking responses, meaning submissions by other parties, April 30th, and then reply, May 7th.  Is that agreeable to all parties?  Okay.

MR. STOLL:  Certainly to us, yes.

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Yes.

MS. HARE:  That concludes our proceeding, then.  Thank you very much.
--- Whereupon the hearing concluded at 12:32 p.m.
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